

RULES AND REGULATIONS

Table of Contents

General Rules	
Responsibility and Enforcement	1
Charges & Statements	1
Membership Access Tags	1
Parking Procedures	
Traffic Safety	2
Guest Policies	
Gratuities	2
Emergency Procedures	2
Personal Items	
Telephones & Messages	
Cell Phone Usage	
No Electronic Recording	
No Smoking or Vaping	
Caregiver Policy	
Weapons are Prohibited	
Assumption of Risk, Release and Indemnity	
Rules for Specific Club Amenities	
Children/Youth	6
Tennis, Racquetball and Padel	
Fitness Center	
Resident Member Fitness Center	
Swimming Pools	
Outdoor Whirlpool	
Group Exercise Studios	
Cancellation Policy	
Locker Rooms	
Day Lockers	
Children/Youth Department Rules	
Introduction	9
Family Membership Required	9
Responsible Adult Definition	
Responsible Adult Supervision Requirements	9
Youth Certification Programs	
Sibling Guardianship	10
The Bungalow and the Kid's Gym	
Children's Playground	
Fitness Center	
Resident Member Fitness Center	
Locker Room	
Center Court Café	12

Racquetball, Tennis and Padel Courts	12
Swimming Pools	
Group Exercise Class	
Membership Access Tags	
Children's Caregiver Policy	
Summary of Children/Youth Policies	

Dress Code

All Campus	15
Club Building	15
Center Court Café	
Basketball Court	15
Tennis and Padel Courts	15
Rock Wall	15
Racquetball Courts	15
Fitness Centers	15
Outdoor Track	15
Performance Zone	15
Swimming Pools	16

RULES AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL RULES

Responsibility and Enforcement

The Rules and Regulations of The Houstonian Club (the "Club") are adopted and promulgated by Houstonian Campus, LLC ("Owner") and may be changed from time to time by the Owner, in its sole discretion. Management has the authority to notify Members in writing of rule infractions and take appropriate measures to ensure that the Member or guest abides by the Club's Rules and Regulations, Bylaws and Code of Conduct. Members are responsible for their own behavior and that of their family Members and guests. Each Member is responsible for all liabilities, losses, costs and damages caused by the Member, their family Members and guests.

Charges & Statements

All dues and charges billed to Members shall be due and payable promptly upon receipt of a monthly statement. Member accounts unpaid 25 days after the billing date shall be considered past due and delinquent, and late charges equal to 1.5% of the past due amount shall be assessed to the Member's account. In addition, in the event a Member's account remains unpaid 25 days after the billing date, the Club and the Owner shall have the right at any time thereafter to charge the Member's credit card given for guarantee of payment. If any Member's account remains unpaid for a period of 60 days from the date of the first billing, and the amount due cannot be charged to the Member's credit card given for guarantee of payment, such Member shall be suspended from all membership privileges. The suspended Member shall be notified in writing of such suspension and if payment is not received within ten days after the mailing of such notification, the Member may be expelled by the Club. Members who are suspended more than three times within a 12-month period are subject to expulsion, at the sole discretion of the Club. In addition to the remedies provided above, the Club and the Owner may pursue all available remedies in order to recover any amounts owed to the Club and the Owner whether arising through membership account activity or a financing obligation including without limitation, turning such matter over to a collection agency.

Membership Access Tags

Each Member is issued an access tag and assigned a membership number. The access tag should be carried at all times within the Club or while on the Houstonian Campus, which includes, without limitation, (i) all Club facilities; (ii) spa facilities; (iii) hotel/resort facilities; (iv) the meadow, grounds and outdoor track; and (v) parking areas (the "Houstonian Campus"). The membership number may be used for purchases while on the Houstonian Campus, which will be billed monthly to the Member's account. Access tags have a unique user identity and are not to be loaned or shared with others. If the access tag is lost or damaged, a replacement fee may be charged to the Member's account.

Parking Procedures

Parking stickers are issued for vehicle identification purposes and should be placed on the bottom left rear window of the automobile. Additional parking stickers are available from Membership Services. Parking is limited during major events. Resident Members may use their access tags for gate access to the Resident Member parking areas.

Traffic Safety

Members and guests are to exercise caution when driving on the Houstonian Campus. Numerous pedestrians, including children and the elderly, use the Club drive, sidewalks, garages and outdoor track. Drivers must yield to pedestrians at all times.

Members and guests must drive slowly and with caution! The speed limit is 10 mph on the Houstonian Campus and 5 mph in the parking lots and garages.

Guest Policies

All guests must: (i) be accompanied by the Member, (ii) complete a guest liability waiver at the Club lobby desk, (iii) present photo identification and (iv) pay the guest fee prior to using the Club. A Member may not be a guest of another Member in order to gain different membership privileges. For example, an Associate Member may not access areas designated for the use of Resident Members by being the guest of a Resident Member. There is a limit of four guests per day per membership. Should a Member wish to have more than four guests, a written request to the Director of Membership must be submitted one week in advance. The Director of Membership will then contact the Member regarding applicable fees. A guest may not use the Club more than twice during a calendar month and shall not exceed 12 guest visits per calendar year. Individual guests of a Resident Member will not be charged a guest fee. Arrangements for unaccompanied guests must be made in advance with the Director of Membership. Unregistered or unauthorized guests will be asked to leave the Club immediately and the Member will be subject to disciplinary action. Expelled or suspended Members may not be the guest of another Member. Out-of-town guests may use the Club for more than two consecutive days if a written request is made to, and approved by, the Director of Membership. Such approval may vary, based on Club usage and requested access times. Unauthorized use of the Club by a non-Member may result in criminal trespass charges. Guest policies are intended for non-Member use, meaning a Member may not gain additional rights by being the guest of another Member.

Gratuities

Gratuities are an expression of satisfaction with service and are given at the Member's discretion. However, at the Manor House, there will be a 20% gratuity added (22% for private functions) and at Arbor Grill, there will be an 18% gratuity added to food and beverage purchases. Gratuities are completely voluntary at Center Court Café. Once a year, during the holiday season, management and Members combine in an effort to thank the employees of The Houstonian. A suggested gratuity contribution will be added to the Member's billing statement. The fund is combined with other funds contributed by The Houstonian and is distributed equitably to Houstonian employees in its entirety. Participation by Members is voluntary.

Emergency Procedures

Should an accident occur at the Club, it should be immediately reported to the Operator by using any Club telephone and dialing "0." The Operator will expedite emergency procedures. Should a Member or guest become injured while at the Club, staff is not permitted to provide transportation. The Club, and its employees, shall have the right, but not the responsibility, to summon emergency medical care for a Member, family Member or guest (including minors) using the Club Facilities in the event an employee, in their reasonable opinion, determines such emergency medical care is warranted. Members are encouraged to be CPR certified.

Personal Items

Neither the Club nor the Owner is responsible for lost, stolen or damaged items anywhere on the Houstonian Campus. Valuables are not to be left in lockers. Personal lock boxes are available in the Associate locker rooms and inside lockers located in Resident locker rooms. Members and guests should not leave personal items (i.e., shoes, bags, etc.) outside of lockers unattended, and should keep lockers locked at all times. Lost and found item inquiries should be made through the Club lobby desk. Items turned in and not claimed after 30 days may be donated to local charities. Members and guests must always keep all personal belongings on their person or in a locker.

Telephones & Messages

Telephones are located throughout the Club. Members and guests may dial "0" to reach the hotel operator in emergency situations. Members and guests may also dial "9" to obtain an outside line. Incoming messages may be attached to lockers by the locker room attendant.

Cell Phone Usage

Cell phone use is permitted in the Club's common areas including Center Court, the lobby and hallways and in the locker rooms. Cell phone use is not permitted in the Fitness Center, group exercise studios and Resident Member Fitness Center. Cell phones must be placed on silent mode in all areas of the Club, and all use must comply with the "No Electronic Recording" policy below.

No Electronic Recording

Photography, videography, voice recording and any other form of recording imagery, conversations or sounds without the express written consent of all parties is strictly forbidden on the Houstonian Campus. This includes, but is not limited to the taking of photographs, videos, voice recordings and the use of other digital imagery programs, whether with a cellular phone, wearable device, digital camera, internet accessible webcam, video recorder, audio recorder, software designed to monitor or record computer use by a specific user or other device. Likewise, publishing any image or recording taken anywhere on the Houstonian Campus whether in print or digital format, including via the internet, without the expressed written consent of all parties is strictly forbidden.

No Smoking or Vaping

Smoking or vaping is not permitted anywhere on the Houstonian Campus, except in certain designated outdoor areas.

Caregiver Policy

A Member or family member requiring care (whether child or adult) may be accompanied at the Club by a Caregiver age 18 or older who is sponsored by the Member. The Caregiver must remain on the Houstonian Campus with the Member or family member. The Caregiver may not participate in any programs or personal usage of the Club facilities, unless the sponsoring Member has notified the Club front desk that their Caregiver will be a guest on their account for the day, following all guest protocols. All Caregivers must be registered with the Club front desk and the Member Service Director, with renewal registration required every six months, presenting a photo identification each time. See Children/Youth Department Rules (p. 13) for further information regarding Caregivers for children.

Weapons are Prohibited

Weapons of any kind are prohibited at the Club, including without limitation, long guns, hand guns and knives whether carried pursuant to a permit or otherwise.

Pursuant to Section 30.06, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a concealed handgun.

Pursuant to Section 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a handgun that is carried openly.

Assumption of Risk, Release and Indemnity

ANY MEMBER, FAMILY MEMBER, GUEST OR OTHER PERSON WHO, IN ANY MANNER, MAKES USE OF OR ACCEPTS THE USE OF THE HOUSTONIAN CAMPUS AND ANY CLUB FACILITY, APPARATUS, APPLIANCE, PRIVILEGE OR SERVICE WHATSOEVER OWNED, LEASED OR OPERATED BY THE OWNER, OR WHO ENGAGES IN ANY CONTEST, GAME, FUNCTION, EXERCISE, COMPETITION OR OTHER ACTIVITY OPERATED, ORGANIZED, ARRANGED OR SPONSORED BY THE OWNER, EITHER ON OR OFF THE HOUSTONIAN CAMPUS AND CLUB FACILITIES (COLLECTIVELY, THE "ACTIVITIES AND USE"), (i) DOES SO AT HIS OR HER OWN RISK AND EXPRESSLY ASSUMES ALL DANGERS AND RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE ACTIVITIES AND USE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE RISK OF INJURY OR DEATH AND DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY AND (ii) ON BEHALF OF HIMSELF OR HERSELF AND ALL HEIRS, **ADMINISTRATORS.** LEGAL **REPRESENTATIVES.** FAMILY **MEMBERS.** SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, DOES HEREBY FULLY AND FOREVER DISCHARGE, **RELEASE, AGREE TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS (a) THE** OWNER, ITS MEMBERS, MANAGERS, PARTNERS, OPERATORS, OFFICERS, **VOLUNTEERS**, DIRECTORS, **INVESTORS.** EMPLOYEES, COACHES, CONTRACTORS, VENDORS, AFFILIATES, AGENTS AND SUBSIDIARIES; AND (b) ALL RESPECTIVE **EMPLOYEES**, **OFFICERS.** OF THEIR **DIRECTORS.** SHAREHOLDERS, OWNERS, MEMBERS, MANAGERS, PARTNERS, AGENTS, ATTORNEYS, INSURANCE PROVIDERS, REPRESENTATIVES, CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS, AND FOR EACH OF THE PARTIES IN (a) AND (b) ABOVE, THEIR RESPECTIVE HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS (COLLECTIVELY, THE "RELEASED PARTIES"), FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, INJURIES, RIGHTS OF ACTION, CAUSES OF ACTION, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, DEMANDS, LOSS OF COMPENSATION, COSTS AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES, COURT COSTS, COSTS OF INVESTIGATION AND EXPERT FEES) WHETHER **RELATED TO PROPERTY DAMAGE, PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH OF PERSONS OR OTHERWISE (COLLECTIVELY, "CLAIMS"), WHETHER THE SAME BE KNOWN,** ANTICIPATED OR UNANTICIPATED, THAT MAY OCCUR AS A DIRECT OR INDIRECT RESULT OR ARISING OUT OF, REGARDING OR RELATING TO THE

ACTIVITIES AND USE, WHETHER DUE TO NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE, OF THE RELEASED PARTIES.

The provisions of any state, federal or local law providing that a release shall not extend to claims, demands, injuries or damages which are unknown or unsuspected to exist at that time, to the person executing such release, are hereby expressly waived.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank]

RULES FOR SPECIFIC CLUB AMENITIES

Children/Youth

For Members holding a Family Membership, the Club permits use of the Club's amenities by children 25 years of age and younger. The Children/Youth Department Rules below specify rules regarding use of the Club's amenities by children.

Tennis, Racquetball and Padel

Resident Members may reserve a court seven days in advance and Associate Members may reserve a court three days in advance.

Tennis prime-time standards:

Indoor courts

•••••••	
Monday - Friday	9 a.m. to 12 p.m. and 4 p.m. to 7 p.m.
Weekends	8 a.m. to 4 p.m.

Padel prime-time standards:

Monday - Friday	4 p.m. to 7 p.m.
Weekends	9 a.m. to 12 p.m.
Summer Weekdays	9 a.m. to 12 p.m.

During prime-time hours, Members can make only the following court reservations: Singles -60 minutes, doubles 90 minutes. The maximum time allowed for court reservations is 90 minutes. Resident Members may make two prime time reservations per week and Associate Members may make one prime time reservation per week. Members are allowed to reserve one Padel court per week during prime-time hours. Outdoor tennis courts do not have prime time restrictions.

Failure to arrive for a tennis or Padel court reservation may result in a cancellation fee of \$45 or such other amount as determined by the Club. All cancellations must be made 24 hours in advance by calling the racquet sports office at 713-685-6847. Members must contact the racquet sports office in the event of arriving late for a reservation. Arrival of more than 15 minutes late may result in the loss of the reservation.

Fitness Center

Proper attire must be worn in the Fitness Center at all times. Proper etiquette shall be enforced at all times. Outside food or beverage is not allowed in the Fitness Center (except nutrition bars, sports drinks and water). Members may not bring outside personal trainers or coaches into the Club. There is a 30-minute time limit on all cardiovascular equipment while others are waiting. After use, exercise equipment must be towel dried. Free weights must be returned to appropriate racks after use. Track direction is changed daily. Nine laps equal one mile on the indoor track. Slow runners must stay to the inside lane. Participants doing walking lunges must stay on the inside lane. Non-runners must yield to runners. Three-walking abreast is not permitted. Sprinting is not permitted. Safety must be exercised at all times. Houstonian Fitness staff are available to provide assistance. Members and guests should use caution when crossing the Indoor Track.

Resident Member Fitness Center

The same standards apply to this area as with the Fitness Center, with the exception of age. All Members and guests entering this area must be 21 years of age or older.

Swimming Pools

The pools are open during Club hours, and all pool guests must register at the Club lobby desk. All swimmers swim at their own risk. Swim programs are scheduled throughout the week in all pools. During these times, Members not wishing to participate in the program may be asked to leave the area of the pool used for the program. Horseplay and running are not allowed in the pool areas. Diving is not permitted except under the supervision of an instructor. Glass containers are not allowed in any of the pool areas. Responsible Adults (as defined below) are expected to properly care for and supervise children under their care. Lifeguards provide an additional layer of safety, but are not intended to replace proper care and supervision by the Responsible Adult(s). Members and guests are expected to cooperate with any pool staff immediately and comply with any instructions. Inappropriate behavior or attire may result in an individual being asked to leave and/or other disciplinary action. The Sports Pool is for lap swimming, lessons, and organized workouts only. Children may not recreate in the Sports Pool unless they are lap swimming. No outside food or beverages are permitted at the pools.

Outdoor Whirlpool

All pool rules apply to the outdoor whirlpool. Whirlpool maximum temperature must not exceed 104 degrees due to Health Codes.

Group Exercise Studios

The Group Exercise Studios are for scheduled programs only. Members and guests are required to wait outside the studio for the next class to begin. Studio equipment is not to be removed and/or used outside of class. Proper attire must be worn in all classes, and classroom etiquette standards for Members and guests to follow are clearly posted in all studios. Shoes must be removed before entering Studio B. The storage areas outside the studios should be used only for shoes. Clothes and other personal items should be stored in lockers or safe deposit boxes, as appropriate.

Those who are new to, or would like to learn more about Group Exercise Programs, may attend a complimentary Group Exercise Orientation class. Registration is required. Please call 713-685-6855.

Cancellation Policy

Cancellations for all Houstonian programs, services and court reservations must be made at least 24 hours in advance. Failure to do so will result in the full charge being assessed to the membership account. Cancellations for The Bungalow must be made at least four hours in advance, to avoid a three-hour charge to the membership account. Program cancellation fees apply to all Members regardless of membership category.

Locker Rooms

A limited number of lockers in each locker room are available to rent for a monthly fee. To obtain a locker, or to be placed on the waiting list, the Member must fill out a locker request form. When a locker becomes available, the Member will be notified. The Member must respond within five

working days or the locker will be offered to the next person on the waiting list. Upon locker assignment, billing will occur monthly until the Member cancels the locker in writing. Daily laundry service is available for one workout outfit per rental locker. Jeans and shoes are not permissible laundry items. Clothes must be placed in the laundry bag, the bag securely closed, and dropped in the dirty towel drop. The laundry bag will be returned to the designated locker. The Club is not responsible for lost or damaged clothing. The Club assumes no responsibility for items lost, stolen, or damaged. All valuables must be locked in the safe deposit boxes provided in the locker rooms. Management reserves the right to audit lockers from time to time. To cancel a locker, the Member must fill out a cancellation form, which is available from the locker room attendants. Upon cancellation, the Member has 24 hours to retrieve his or her belongings. After this period, staff will clean out the locker and place the belongings in lost and found. Items cleaned out and not claimed within 30 days may be donated to local charities. Upon expulsion, the Member's rental locker will be cleaned out and if the items are not collected within 24 hours, all articles will be placed in lost and found. Inactive Membership automatically forfeits access to rental lockers. Towels and toiletries, as well as fruit, bottled water and snacks in the Resident Locker Room, are for use and consumption at the Club only.

Day Lockers

Day lockers are available in all locker rooms. Safe deposit boxes are located in the Associate and Resident Locker Rooms. The Club is not responsible for items lost, stolen, or damaged.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank]

CHILDREN/YOUTH DEPARTMENT RULES

Introduction

The Club appeals to families as well as adults without children. Parents are asked to be sensitive to the enjoyment of facilities by fellow Members. This requires that children and teenagers be advised regarding appropriate behavior and supervised while visiting the Club. This is particularly important in the Center Court Café, hallways and the locker rooms.

The following rules are designed to promote safety and the enjoyment of the Club by Members, families and guests. Unsupervised youth not adhering to the following rules will be escorted to the Bungalow or Kids' Gym or other specified area, and the parent will be charged accordingly. Abuse of these rules is grounds for discipline, including potential suspension or expulsion. These rules apply to Members and guests.

Family Membership Required

All children using Club facilities must be registered on a Family Membership or be subject to guest fees.

Responsible Adult Definition

For purposes of these Rules and Regulations, a "Responsible Adult" means a (i) parent, (ii) legal guardian at least 18 years of age, or (iii) Caregiver at least 18 years of age who otherwise complies with the Caregiver Policy in these Rules and Regulations.

Responsible Adult Supervision Requirements

For children under the age of 12 and children ages 12-15 who do not have a Youth Certification, a Responsible Adult is required to remain in direct visual and speaking contact with the child. This is not required when a child is participating in a supervised Club program. The Responsible Adult must remain on the Houstonian Campus with children under the age of 12, including those with a Junior Youth Certification and be accessible in the event of an emergency.

Supervision at Pools

See "Swimming Pools" below for supervision requirements at the Club's pools.

Youth Certification Programs

The Club offers the following two Youth Certification programs, which provide the opportunity for certified youth to obtain increased rights and responsibilities at the Club:

Junior Youth Certification

Available for youth ages 9-11. Subject to meeting all certification requirements, the Junior Youth Certification permits use of the basketball court, outdoor track, Center Court Café, locker rooms, racquetball, Padel and tennis courts without supervision by a Responsible Adult, but a Responsible Adult must remain on the Houstonian Campus at all times.

Youth Certification

Available for youth ages 12-15. Subject to meeting all certification requirements, the Youth Certification permits use of the basketball court, outdoor track, Center Court Café, locker rooms, racquetball, Padel and tennis courts, <u>plus</u> the main Fitness Center and the pools without a Responsible Adult, and a Responsible Adult is not required to remain on the Houstonian campus (unless they are responsible for other children requiring their presence).

Sibling Guardianship

Youth who are ages 12-15 and holding a Youth Certification may serve as a "Sibling Guardian" for up to two siblings, subject to the following requirements: (i) a parent or legal guardian must sign all required documentation authorizing the youth holding the Youth Certification to serve as a Sibling Guardian, (ii) the siblings under the supervision of the Sibling Guardian must be at least 6 years of age, and (iii) all siblings must be included in a Family Membership. A Sibling Guardian may perform the following limited functions (in lieu of a Responsible Adult): accompanying siblings to the tennis, racquetball and Padel courts; the Meadow; Center Court Café; the basketball court; and the Associate Locker Room to shower and change. The Sibling Guardian is not authorized to perform any other role, including without limitation, taking his or her sibling(s) to the pools, Fitness Center, Outdoor Track or to "hang out" in the hallways or lounge areas of the Associate Locker Rooms without a Responsible Adult.

The Bungalow and the Kids' Gym

Child care at the Bungalow and Kids' Gym is provided for children 6 weeks to 12 years of age, subject to the age restrictions for each below. The Club requires that a Responsible Adult remains on the Houstonian Campus and be accessible in the event of an emergency. A child's stay may be three hours per visit, not to exceed 12 hours per week. The Club is committed to providing staff with ongoing child development training so they can provide the very best care for the children of Members and guests. Staff should be advised regarding special needs, including nap schedule, feeding, diapering, toilet training, likes and dislikes, etc. This information will help the staff make the child feel comfortable, secure and happy. The Bungalow and Kids' Gym are nut-free environments.

For the Bungalow and Kids' Gym, Resident Family Members may make reservations five days in advance and Associate Family Members may make reservations three days in advance. Cancellations must be made at least four hours in advance to avoid a three-hour charge to the membership account, including Resident Memberships. If children are not signed out properly by a Responsible Adult, the Member's account will be charged for the full three hours of care.

The Bungalow For children from 6 weeks to 5 years of age.

Hours of Operation

Monday – Thursday	8 a.m. to 8 p.m.
Friday	8 a.m. to 4 p.m.
Saturday	7:30 a.m. to 6 p.m.
Sunday	9 a.m. to 6 p.m.

The Bungalow provides child care service, primarily for children ages 6 weeks -5 years old, for up to three hours per day per child, not to exceed 12 hours per week. Children ages 5-12 are permitted in the Bungalow, but are encouraged to use the Kids' Gym when it is open. Associate Members pay an hourly fee for the Bungalow service. Resident Members receive complimentary Bungalow services and complimentary guest fees for Bungalow guests. Reservations are required for infants under 24 months of age at least 24 hours in advance and will be accepted up to 3 days in advance. A Responsible Adult must remain on the Houstonian Campus during each visit. Sick children will not be accepted in consideration of the health of the other children.

Kids' Gym For children ages 5–12.

Hours of Operation (subject to change)	
Monday – Thursday	3 p.m. to 8 p.m.
Friday	Closed
Saturday	7:30 a.m. to 6 p.m.
Sunday	9 a.m. to 6 p.m.
Summer Weekdays	Opens at 8 a.m.

Children must be signed in and out by a Responsible Adult. The Kids' Gym is available to children for up to three hours per day, not to exceed 12 hours per week. A Responsible Adult must remain on the Houstonian Campus during each visit. Inquiries may be directed to 713-685-6753.

Children's Playground

The Children's Playground is an outdoor physical activity area adjacent to the Bungalow designed for children ages 5-12. Members and guests must use caution if a child is younger than 5 years old. Shoes must be worn at all times, and the maximum capacity is 40 people. Bungalow and Kids' Gym staff may take children ages 2-12 outside, weather permitting, during non-peak times, if approved by a Responsible Adult. In addition to the outdoor playground, children ages 5-12 may use the rock wall provided permission is provided by a Responsible Adult.

Children's Playground

Hours of Operation	
Monday – Sunday (Fall)	7 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.
Monday – Sunday (Spring)	8 a.m. to 7 p.m.

A Responsible Adult must follow the Bungalow and Kids' Gym standard procedures for check-in and check-out.

Fitness Center

Children ages 12-15 may use the Fitness Center without Responsible Adult supervision once they have completed the Youth Certification Program. Children under age 12 may not use the Fitness Center except for children working with a Houstonian Personal Trainer. Children ages 16 and older may use this area.

Resident Member Fitness Center

No one under age 21 is allowed use of the Resident Member Fitness Center.

Locker Rooms

Children may enter opposite gender locker rooms up to age 36 months with a Responsible Adult. A Family Changing Area with shower is available for the convenience of parents with children of the opposite gender. This area is located next to Studio B. Children of the opposite gender older than 36 months of age are not permitted in the locker rooms. Children may not obtain a permanent locker in any locker room.

Resident Locker Rooms

Children utilizing the Resident locker rooms must be accompanied at all times by a parent until children are 21 years of age.

Associate Locker Rooms

Children of all ages have access to the Associate locker rooms, subject to the following: (i) youth ages 4-8 may use the locker room of their same gender provided they are supervised by a Responsible Adult or Sibling Guardian and (ii) youth ages 9-16 may use the locker room of their same gender without supervision by a Responsible Adult if they have a Junior Youth Certification or a Youth Certification. "Hanging out" in the locker rooms by children and/or teens is prohibited.

Center Court Café

Children under the age of 9 must be accompanied by a Responsible Adult in Center Court Café. Children age 9-15 must be accompanied by a Responsible Adult unless the Child has a Junior Youth Certification or Youth Certification.

Racquetball, Tennis and Padel Courts

Children under age 9 may not make court reservations. Parents may reserve courts for their children under age 9, provided they plan to be present during play. Children age 9-15 must be supervised by a Responsible Adult unless the Child has a Junior Youth Certification or Youth Certification.

Swimming Pools

Children under the age of 12 must be accompanied by a Responsible Adult at all pools. A Responsible Adult must stay within arms-length of children under age 6 at all pools. For children ages 6-12, a Responsible Adult must be in the same area of the pool where the children are swimming. Only children up to the age of 5 may use the Little Lagoon. Children who are not potty trained must wear a swim diaper. Children and Adults may not recreate in the Sports Pool. The Sports Pool is for exercise and lap swimming only.

From April through Labor Day, the Houstonian pools have "Children's R and R" every 90 minutes to ensure all children under the age of 12 take appropriate breaks to rest, get out of the sun and take care of personal needs while visiting the pools. When Children's R and R is sounded, all children under the age of 12 must exit all pools and take a 10-minute break from swimming. The

Little Lagoon is included. When the break is over, the lifeguards will make an announcement and all children may resume swimming. Children under age 12 who are in swim lessons or a swim program when Children's R and R is called are not required to sit out.

Children under the age of 6 are not permitted in the whirlpools. Children ages 6-11 must be accompanied by a Responsible Adult. Children 12 and up may use the whirlpools. All pool rules apply. Whirlpool maximum temperature must not exceed 104 degrees due to Health Codes.

Group Exercise Classes

Children ages 15–25 may participate in group exercise classes. Children under age 15 are not permitted to take adult classes, except as noted on the Group Exercise schedule.

Membership Access Tags

Upon request of the Member, children ages 16–25 may obtain a children's membership access tag. Children ages 9-11 may obtain a children's membership access tag if they have completed the Junior Youth Certification Program. Children ages 12–15 may obtain a children's membership access tag if they have completed the Youth Certification Program. All children must carry their membership access tag while on the Houstonian Campus.

Children's Caregiver Policy

Children may be accompanied at the Club by a Caregiver age 18 or older who is sponsored by a parent or guardian on the membership. The Caregiver must (i) remain on the Houstonian Campus, (ii) supervise the child while on Campus, and (iii) act on behalf of the parents or guardians with respect to the membership, including compliance with guest usage rules and provision of response and direction in emergency situations. The Caregiver may not participate in any programs or personal usage of the facilities. All Caregivers must be registered with the Club front desk and the Member Service Director, with renewal registration required every six months, presenting a photo identification each time. The Caregiver must fill out proper forms in the Bungalow or Kids' Gym for all children. The Caregiver is responsible for the care of the child if they remain in the Bungalow or Kids' Gym.

Summary of Children/Youth Policies The Following chart summarizes the Club's children/youth rules.

Child's Age	The Houstonian Club Rules
Any age	• May use basketball court, outdoor track, pools, Center Court Café,
	racquetball and tennis courts with Responsible Adult supervision.
	• May use the Main Fitness Center with a Personal Trainer.
6 weeks to 12 years	Must be checked into the Bungalow or Kids' Gym by a Responsible
old	Adult.
3 years old and under	Permitted in either Associate locker room with Responsible Adult supervision.
3 to 4 years old	May attend the Junior All Star Camp if they are potty trained.
3 to 17 years old	Youth ages 4-8 may use the locker room of the same gender with Responsible Adult supervision. Youth ages 9 and up may use the locker room of the same gender without Responsible Adult supervision if they have obtained a Junior Youth Certification or Youth Certification.
5 to 12 years old	Children may also use the Rock Wall and the Outdoor Playground with permission from the Responsible Adult registering the child.
9 to 11 years old	 May use basketball court, outdoor track, Center Court Café, racquetball and tennis courts with a Junior Youth Certification and without Responsible Adult supervision. A Responsible Adult must remain on the premises at all times. May check out equipment, make a reservation for a racquetball or tennis court and reserve a tennis ball machine.
12 years old and under	Not permitted in the whirlpool, sauna or steam room.
12 to 14 years old	May participate in specific family friendly classes notated on the schedule with Responsible Adult supervision.
12 to 16 years old	 May use basketball court, outdoor track, Center Court Café, pools, racquetball, and tennis courts, <u>plus</u> the Main Fitness Center and the pools with a Youth Certification and without Responsible Adult supervision. May check out equipment, make a reservation for a racquetball or tennis court and reserve a tennis ball machine. May bring a youth guest 12 to 18 years old.
12 to 17 years old	• Eligible to serve as a "Sibling Guardian" subject to the sibling guardian being youth certified and a parent executing a Sibling Guardianship Agreement and further subject to the terms and conditions of these Rules and Regulations.

DRESS CODE

All Campus

Attire appropriate for a family environment must be worn in all areas of the Houstonian Campus. Unduly provocative or offensive attire, as determined in the Club's sole discretion, is not permitted.

Club Building

Shirts, shorts/pants and shoes must be worn in all areas of the Club at all times. Swimsuits must have proper "cover-up" while in the building. Offensive attire of any nature, as determined by Club Management will not be permitted.

Center Court Café

Shirts, shorts/pants and shoes are required in Center Court Café at all times. Dry swimsuits must have proper "cover-ups."

Basketball Court

Shirts, shorts/pants and shoes must be worn at all times. Appropriate court shoes are required. Black-soled shoes are restricted.

Tennis and Padel Courts

Proper court shoes are required. Black-soled shoes, running shoes and cross trainers are restricted. Shirts with sleeves (no tank tops) must be worn at all times. Proper tennis attire is required.

Rock Wall

Shirts, workout leggings, pants or long shorts and proper climbing shoes are required.

Racquetball Courts

Proper court shoes are required. Black-soled shoes, running shoes and cross trainers are restricted. Shirts must be worn at all times. Eye guards are required along with wrist safety straps for racquetball racquets.

Fitness Centers

Proper workout attire is required. Shirts and proper athletic shoes must be worn in all areas of the Fitness Center. Sandals/flip-flops, dress shoes, high-heels, open back shoes and running spikes are not allowed.

Outdoor Track

Casual, resort attire or workout attire and proper workout shoes must be worn at all times. Highheels and dress shoes are not allowed.

Performance Zone

Proper workout attire is required. Shirts and proper athletic shoes must be worn. Cutoffs, blue jeans, sandals/flip flops, open back shoes and running spikes are not allowed.

Swimming Pools

Swimwear appropriate for a family environment. No street clothes, workout wear, cutoffs, skimpy swimsuits, thongs or swimsuit bottoms that don't cover the entire buttocks will be permitted in or around the pool. Proper casual attire, resort attire and workout attire is permitted on the pool deck, but not when utilizing the pools.

N:\addison\b7233.01\rules and regs\Rules and Regs (ALF 8-18-17).docx